
 

 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 
 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
 

DATE:  April 20, 2022 

TIME:  4-7 pm 

LOCATION: Carson City Community Center, Bonanza Room  

851 E. William Street, Carson City, NV  89701 

AGENDA 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order; 2) combine two or 
more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion related to an item at any time. All 
votes will be conducted by CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate individuals with 
limited ability to speak, write, or understand English and/or to those with disabilities who wish to join the meeting.  Please contact 
Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 or email: catrina@cwsd.org at least two business days in advance so that arrangements can 
be made. 
 

1. Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter 
brought up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a 
later meeting. 

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

6. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of Feb. 16, 2022 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Please Note:  All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of Directors with one 
action and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, 
discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for March 2022 

8. For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for March 2022 

9. For Possible Action:  Approval of Civil Rights provisions in Federal Funding  
language being added to CWSD contract language (§ 200.321) 

10. For Discussion Only:  CRC Watershed Forum March 29-30, 2022 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

11. For Possible Action:  Strategic Planning Session 

12. For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports 

Carson Water Subconservancy District 
Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 

mailto:catrina@cwsd.org


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
4/20/2022 Meeting Agenda 

2 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

    - General Manager 

    - Legal 

    - Correspondence 

13. For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports 

14. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County 

15. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County 

16. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter 
brought up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a 
later meeting. 

17. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 

 

 
 

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at  
775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at 

https://www.cwsd.org 

  

https://www.cwsd.org/


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
4/20/2022 Meeting Agenda 

3 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 
In accordance with NRS 241.020, this notice and agenda has been posted at the following 
locations: 

 Dayton Utilities Complex   Minden Inn Office Complex 
 34 Lakes Blvd     1594 Esmeralda Avenue 
 Dayton, NV     Minden, NV 
 
 Lyon County Administrative Building  Churchill County Administrative Complex 
 27 S. Main St.     155 N Taylor St. 
 Yerington, NV      Fallon, NV 
 
 Carson City Hall     Carson Water Subconservancy District Office 
 201 N. Carson St.    777 E. William St., #110A 
 Carson City, NV      Carson City, NV 
 

Alpine County Administrative Building - CWSD website: 
 99 Water St.     https://www.cwsd.org 

Markleeville, CA    State public meetings website: 
       http://notice.nv.gov 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

The undersigned affirms that on or before 9:00 am on April 12, 2022, he/she posted a copy of 
the Notice of Special Public Meeting and Agenda for the April 20, 2022, meeting of the Carson 
Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors, in accordance with NRS 241.020; said agenda 
was posted at the following location:   

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE 
 
 

Name:  ______________________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________________ 

Date & Time of Posting:  ________________________________ 

https://www.cwsd.org/
http://notice.nv.gov/


AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

MINUTES OF LAST 

BOARD MEETING 



DRAFT 

1 3-16-2022 

 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 16, 2021 

Draft Minutes 

Chairman Giomi called the meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) to 
order at 6:30pm in the Bonanza Room at the Carson City Community Center at 851 East William 
Street in Carson City. Roll call of the CWSD Board was taken and a quorum was determined to be 
present. 

CWSD Directors present:   

Mark Gardner(via Zoom) 

Stacey Giomi  

Ken Gray (via Zoom) 

Jim Hindle 

Dave Nelson (via Zoom) 

Lisa Schuette 

Fred Stodieck 

Mike Workman 

Directors Absent:  John Engels, Pete Olsen, and Ernie Schank. 

Roll call of the Carson River Watershed Committee included CWSD Directors and Committee 

Members present - David Griffith and January Riddle (via Zoom). 

CWSD Staff & Guests present: 

Kathy Canfield, Storey County Planner 

Shane Fryer, Watershed Program Specialist 

Edwin James, General Manager 

Patrick King, CWSD Attorney 

Debbie Neddenriep, Water Resources Specialist II 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Fred Stodieck. 

Item #4 – Discussion Only:  Public Comment – None 

Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

Director Stodieck made a motion to approve the Board Meeting Agenda as 

presented. The motion was seconded by Director Schuette and unanimously 

approved by the Board. 

Item #6 – For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of Feb.16, 2022 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the Board Meeting 

Minutes of February 16, 2022, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 

Director Workman and unanimously approved by the Board. 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 



DRAFT 

2 3-16-2022 

 

 

Item #7 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for February 2022 

Item #8 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for February 2022 

Item #9 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2022-1 with Michael 

Baker for East Carson City ADMP not to exceed $174,465 

Item #10 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2022-2 with Kimley-

Horn for Southeast Carson City ADMP not to exceed $129,560 

Item #11 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2022-3 with Lumos for 

Virginia City Six Mile Canyon ADMP not to exceed $223,210 

Item #12 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2022-4 with JE Fuller 

Buckeye not to exceed $175,080.60 

Item #13 - For Possible Action:  Approval of the 2022 Water and Sewer Rate 

Report 

Director Workman made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented.  The motion was seconded by Committee Member David Griffith 

and unanimously approved by the Board. 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #14 - For Possible Action:  Watershed Moments Update 

Mr. Fryer reported there was very positive feedback the latest PSA, “ Use a Car Wash.”  It 
was the best response so far for the campaign.  The next video is “Healthy Soil,” which he 
intended to preview for the Board.  Due to technical difficulties, he will be sending the 
clip later.  He said the script is done, but the video still needs work. 

No action taken. 

Item #15 - For Possible Action:  Approval of the Tentative General Fund, 

Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund Fiscal Year  

2022-23 Budgets 

Mr. James went over the proposed budgets as recommended by the February 22, 2022, 
meeting of the Finance Committee.   He explained that the Ad Valorem Taxes amount is 
an educated guess as the budgeted amount from the Tax Department is not published 
until May.  Approving the General Fund Budget must be done with a caveat of adjusting 
that entry to the actual amount when provided. 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the Tentative 

General Fund, Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain 

Management Fund Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budgets with allowing for the 

update to the Ad Valorem Taxes when known.  The motion was seconded by 

Director Stodieck and unanimously approved by the Board. 

Item #16 - For Possible Action:  Update on the USACE determination that the 



DRAFT 

3 3-16-2022 

 

 

Carson River is a navigable water of the United States pursuant to the Rivers and 

Harbors Act 

Mr. James reported the next Permit Workshop will be March 24, 2022.  CWSD will be 
showing the group an interactive map that Shane Fryer has put together to show all 
diversions and pumps along the East Fork of the Carson River and relevant known 
information on each.  There are specific areas that need to be addressed for the permit 
such as  (1) maintenance of restoration project, (2) clearing and snagging, and (3) 
emergency management. 

Mr. Fryer presented the “Waters of US Carson River Diversion Structures (Draft)” to the 
Board.  This is a Google Earth interactive map that he hopes to make available to the 
public when complete.   

Mr. James let the Board know they were welcome to attend the workshop if they would 
like.  Let him know and he will send a link. 

No action taken. 

Item #17 - For Possible Action:  CRC Watershed Forum Update 

Mr. Fryer gave an update on the upcoming CRC Watershed Forum being held in the Ruvo 
Stateroom of the Governor’s Mansion, March 29-30, 9-4pm.  Lunch will be catered by The 
Tamale Lady.  March 29 schedule will include Environmental Education, Recreation 
Projects, and Weed Projects.  March 30 schedule will include FEMA Projects, 
Implementation of Restoration Projects, and Water Quality. 

Registration will be available online and all are welcome. 

No action taken. 

Item #18 - For Discussion Only:  2022 Water Update 

Mr. James gave a slide show report on the Water Year, which goes from Oct 1 to Sep 30 
of each year.  We are currently at 99% precipitation but the snow water equivalent is only 
68%. This water year has been feasted or famine.  Records have been broken on both the 
wet side and the dry side from month to month.  The good news for this year is the soil 
saturation is above average which may mean we will have a good spring runoff.  We are 
still looking at a drought situation. 

No action taken. 

Item #19 – For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports –  

Mr. James reported the following: 

• The Association of State Floodplain Managers (ASFPM) is having their annual conference 
in Orlando, Florida, May 15-19 and CWSD had already planned to send Debbie 
Neddenriep to the event.  FEMA has asked her to be a speaker at the conference on the 
work being done for the Carson River and will comp her registration fee.  The travel and 
accommodations will be paid by FEMA grant.  Mr. James explained that not only is FEMA 



DRAFT 

4 3-16-2022 

 

 

recognizing CWSD for its work locally, but this is a national recognition of the work we are 
doing! Kudos to Debbie! 

• Regarding FEMA Mas 13:  Not all the projects we requested will be funded.  FEAM will 
fund:   

▪ ADMP Silver Springs 
▪ Fish Creek / Douglas County 
▪ Flood Awareness Program 

 

• The April 20, 2022, Board meeting will be our Strategic Planning Session.  We will start 
the meeting as usual, go through the Consent Agenda, and Strategic Planning will be the 
next agenda item.  The goal is to start the meeting at 4pm and finish by 7pm.  Dinner will 
be provided.  This is an in-person meeting, no zoom link available.  We are hoping the 
entire Board will attend. 

• Mr. James emailed the Perennial Yield Webinar to all Board members.  He suggests they 
would find it interesting. 

Legal – None 

Correspondence –  

• Obituary:  James Baushke, Former CWSD Director 

Item #19 – For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports –  

• Director Gardner reported a new CWSD Director from Douglas County (AG) will be 
selected on Thursday, March 17.  There are 3 applicants. 

• Chairman Giomi reported Carson City just got word that they will receive funding for the 
Quill Treatment Plant, so work will be starting on that project now.  Carson City should be 
able to use that water in 1½ -2 years. 

Item #20– For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County –  

• Committee Member Riddle reported that post fire tree removal along Hwy 89 continues 
and is impacting traffic.  It is a stark landscape.  

• Committee Member Griffith reported the Forest Service is hosting an After Tamarack Fire 
Scoping meeting March 23 at 5pm at Turtle Rock Park.  Restoration after the fire will 
affect water.  Also, he reported a sawmill will be built on the East side of South Carson on 
Hwy 50 Tribal Land will be starting production in 6 weeks.  This will improve forest health 
in the future. 

Item #21– For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County –  

• Ms. Canfield reported that Story County met with NDOT and had a very productive 
meeting on right-of-way issues.  They are working to get these determinations in writing. 

Item #22 – For Discussion Only:  Public Comment – None 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Giomi adjourned the 

meeting at 7:36 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Catrina Schambra 
Secretary to the Board 



AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 































AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 















AGENDA ITEM #9 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: April 20, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #9 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Civil Rights provisions in 

Federal Funding language being added to CWSD contract language  
(§ 200.321) 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  To receive federal funding CWSD needs to add Civil Rights provisions to 
CWSD contract language.  Below is the proposed language to be added to CWSD contract 
templates.  

 

The Parties acknowledge that CWSD complies with Civil Rights provisions in Federal 
Funding and the following: 

§ 200.321 - Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and 

labor surplus area firms. 

(a) The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority 

businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

(b) Affirmative steps must include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on 

solicitation lists; 

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited 

whenever they are potential sources; 

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to 

permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business 

enterprises; 

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage 

participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small 

Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 

Commerce; and 

(6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps 

listed in paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) of this section. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve amendments to CWSD’s Federal Funds contracts 
to include Civil Rights language of § 200.321 as presented. 
 



AGENDA ITEM #10



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: April 20, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item # 10 – For Discussion Only:  CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  The annual CRC Watershed Forum was held March 29-30, 2022, in the 
Ruvo Stateroom of the Governor’s Mansion. The two-day program is attached. This was 
an in-person forum as we didn’t have the ability to be virtual and in-person. Most 
presentations were recorded and are available on our Carson River Watershed YouTube 
page. View the playlist here. 
 
Below are the results of the 2022 Carson River Watershed Forum survey, translated into 
graphs for ease of viewing. The survey was optional (but highly encouraged) and 
anonymous, with a total of 42 responses gathered. Although we had about 93 people 
register, we had a total of 50 attendees on Day 1 and 49 on Day 2, with the majority of 
attendees attending both days. We are excited to have such a high return rate on the 
survey. 
 
After each graph will be a short explanation of results, along with some selected additional 
comments provided by the respondents to the survey- nearly every question gave an 
opportunity for the respondent to provide additional input. 
 

 
On a scale of 1-5, with 1 labeled “Not nearly enough” and 5 as “Way too much”, 

respondents were asked to rate the amount of pertinent watershed management 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL9qPxTG9oWYQWjTMUyBaSTcErWzvMB6U7


4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

2 

information shared at the Forum. No respondent rated the information presented with a 1 

or 2 rating. Five respondents (11.9%) rated it as 5- “Way too much”. The majority of 

answers (28 respondents, 66.7%) rated the information presented as a 3, with some “3” 

respondents adding the amount was “Just right.”  

 

Additional comments from the survey: 

“Lots of great info over a wide range of disciplines! So maybe ‘too much' but in a very good 

way.” 

“Would like to see more presentations directed toward private landowners.” 

“I loved the presentations and information, but there were some pretty jam-packed 

sessions. After day 1 my brain was definitely filled to the brim! There were also some that 

were extremely pertinent and a couple that seemed less so.” 

 

 
This time on a scale of 1-4 respondents were asked if they learned something at the 

Forum that will change their actions in the future, with 1 labeled as “Nope” and 4 as 

“Absolutely.” The majority of respondents (21, 50%) said that they absolutely had learned 

something that would affect their actions. The second highest number of responses (14, 

33.3%), 3, are to be read as they may have learned information that might affect their 

future actions. Those who responded with 2 (a minority at 7 respondents, or 16.7%) are 

those who may have learned information that probably will not affect their future actions. 

No respondent gave a 1, or “Nope”, answer. 

 

Additional comments from the Survey, regarding what was learned: 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

3 

“Potential incorporation of looking for invasive aquatic weeds in surveys, additional public 

outreach, and just general increase of knowledge.” 

“I learned about watershed conservation methods through the I Am Carson River 

presentation, about meadow restoration (Beaver Dam Analogs!), and about so many other 

conservation, restoration, and management efforts in the Carson River Watershed (quite 

inspiring!).” 

“I plan to attend the Floodplain Management Working Group meetings, I have reviewed the 

Sierra Nevada Meadows Dataset, I plan to follow the many river stabilization and 

restoration projects in the CR Watershed.” 

 

3. What was the "take home message" for you? Please describe. 

 

Question 3 was a free-write section in which respondents were asked what the “take home 

message” was for them. Below are a selection of these “take home messages”: 

 

“Take home messages”: 

“Amazing cooperation amongst agencies, but many competing for the same funding might 

need a phased application funding strategy amongst the stakeholders” 

“There is a lot going on in the watershed, particularly in the context of a climate that is 

more dry, and at a higher fire risk. Progress is being made, and good work is being done.” 

“Be responsible in irrigation practices, keep your wells at a shallower depth (if possible) to 

reduce arsenic consumption, and get rid of septic systems!” 

“CWSD has a complex mission with an infinite number of partners.” 

 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

4 

Question 4 asked respondents if they liked the current 2-day format of the Forum. As can 

be seen above, the majority (39, 92.9%) do like the current format! Only 3 respondents 

said otherwise. 

 

Additional comments from the Survey: 

“There was a lot of great content and two days helped to spread it out. It was good having 

more time to connect with people, too.” 

“There's no way I could've gotten all the information I did in one day.” 

“It is really hard to devote two full days to this, but I think it might need to be two days as 

there is so much good info to be shared! Appreciated the longer breaks and more chances 

to talk to people.” 

 
Relatedly, question 5 asks if respondents like the Forum being completely in-person. No 

respondent wanted a completely virtual event, with the majority (29, 70.7%) preferring an 

all in-person event. 12 respondents (29.3%) expressed interest in an in-person event with 

the opportunity to attend virtually as well.  

 

 

Additional comments from the Survey: 

“It's a great opportunity to network and put faces to names. And it's much easier to not get 

distracted in a collective environment.” 

“It’s great to attend when possible but it would be nice to be able to attend virtually if in 

person attendance is not possible.” 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

5 

 
Respondents were asked what timeframe is preferable for the Forum to be held, with the 

majority responding that January-March is the best time of year for our event. Smaller 

percentages of respondents preferred April-June (7, 16.7%) or Other (4, 9.9%). Other 

responses were to be detailed beneath the question, with some of those responses listed 

below. 

 

Additional comments from the Survey: 

“February or March so we can discuss that year's water supply ahead of the critical melt 

season.” 

“We got lucky with the weather” 

“End of March was wonderful! I think it might be trickier in winter due to weather, but in the 

middle-end of spring might be too busy due to school-age children's activities (parents 

might be juggling a lot).” 

 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

6 

 
Question 7 asked respondents how they originally heard about our Forum, with this 

question allowing for the selection of multiple choices (i.e. someone heard about our 

Forum through both word of mouth and Carson Now). The results indicate that the majority 

of respondents (32, 76.2%) found out about our event through Carson River Coalition 

emails, and only a single person heard about the Forum through the newspaper. A few 

“Other” responses (8, 19%) are listed below. 

Additional comments from the survey: 

“AWG” 

“Stagecoach General Improvement District” 

“CWSD Website” 

 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

7 

Question 8 asked respondents how often they participated in watershed events, Carson 

River Coalition or not. The results were fairly evenly spread, with a slight majority (11, 

26.2%) responding they participated several times a year. The second highest response 

was “This is the only time”, with 21.4% of respondents (9) selecting this option. 19%, or 8 

respondents selected “Monthly/Quarterly”. “Once a year” and “Several times a year” both 

ended with 16.7% of respondents (7) answering with those options.  

 

There were no additional comments for this question. 

 

 
Question 9 asks how respondents would describe themselves so as to aid our 

understanding of our Forum demographics. Of those who completed our Survey, 28.6% 

(or 12 respondents) classified themselves as belonging to the “Federal, state, regional 

government agency” category. The second highest percentage, 23.8% (or 10 

respondents), belonged to the “Local government agency” category. Following that is 

“Local business/private industry” at 19% (8 respondents), “Non-governmental organization” 

at 14.3% (6 respondents), “Interested/concerned citizen'' at 9.5% (4 respondents), and 

“Tribal” at 4.8% (2 respondents). 

 

There were no additional comments for this question. 

 

10. Do you have any other comments or suggestions about the event relating to topics, 

organization, speakers, venue, food, etc.? 

 

Question 10 was an opportunity for respondents to provide any sort of feedback that they 

could not include in other free-write sections of the Survey. Below are a selection of 



4/20/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #10 CRC Watershed Forum 

 

 

8 

comments from Question 10. A majority of these additional comments were in praise of the 

event and speakers. 

 

Additional comments from the Survey: 

“Well done. Very informative. Suggestion - spell out all acronyms. As a private citizen I did 

not know what all the acronyms stood for. Probably standard knowledge for individuals 

working within this field but not as obvious for the regular public. Print link on the program 

where the videos of the presentations may be found later.” 

“For this venue, I recommend a larger screen to view slides. Was tough to follow 

sometimes. Outstanding lunch choice with tamales on day one!” 

“The food was absolutely delicious, the venue was beautiful and easy to get to with good 

parking. I really enjoyed the speakers and topics, particularly relating to subjects in which I 

can take the information and easily spread it to my neighbors and people of the 

community. I do wish some of the meatier subjects were interspersed with some lighter 

topics.” 

“Serve bland, simple food i.e. sandwiches, chips, salads. People should not have to walk 

past presenters to get to the restroom. Podium should have been in the front, it was very 

distracting.” 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 



AGENDA ITEM #11



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James 
 
DATE: April 20, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item # 11 – For Possible Action:  Strategic Planning Session 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  The goal of the strategic planning session is to discuss the goals and 
activities CWSD will pursue for the next couple of years. Below is a rough timeline for the 
strategic planning session: 

4:15 pm Introduction 
 
4:40 pm CWSD video 
 
4:55 pm Overview of Current Activities: 

• Water Supply ( Ed) 

• Flood Studies (Debbie) 

• Carson River Coalition (Brenda) 
 
5:30 pm Working Dinner - Review Past CWSD Direction 
 
6:00 pm  Prioritize Short and Long-term Goals 

 

To help facilitate our discussion attached are some backup information: 

• CWSD History by Year 

• Overview of income and expenses 

• Income and Expenses graphs 

• Past Board Direction 

• Guiding Principles 

• Discussion Regarding Mud Lake and Lost Lakes Water Rights 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Provide direction on short and long-term goals for CWSD. 

 



CWSD History 

 

1959 – CWSD was formed to contract with local ranchers and farmers to guarantee 

pay back to the Bureau of Reclamation for the construction of Watasheamu Dam and 

Reservoir.  The purpose of the dam was to enhance water supply for agricultural  and 

municipal water user upstream of Lahontan Reservoir, provide flood control and 

recreation, and provide hydroelectric power.  At this time CWSD membership was 

limited to Douglas and Lyon Counties.  CWSD had its own staff.  

Early 1980’s - The Federal Department of the Interior withdrew all support of the 
dam project after determining it was not economically viable. 

Mid 1980s - CWSD studied various storage alternatives and water management 

options through Kennedy / Jenks.  

1985 - CWSD created a comprehensive water resource plan including the potential 
for a dam at a new site at the request of the Nevada Legislature special subcommittee 
review of for flood control storage and water supply in the upper Carson River above 
Lahontan Reservoir.   
 
1989 – CWSD recreated by legislation pursuant to chapter 541 of the Nevada 
Revised Statue.  A nine-member Board of Directors was established with members 
from Douglas County, Carson City, and Lyon County. Table 1 provides a breakdown of 
1989 membership. The Nevada Legislature assigned CWSD to manage and develop 
water resources in the Carson River above Lahontan Dam to:  

• Alleviate reductions or loss of water supply;   

• Unify responsibilities for conservation and supply of water;  and,  

• Protect against threats to the health, safety and welfare of the people of the 
Carson River Basin.  

Table 1: 1989 Nine Member Board Membership 

Douglas County  Carson City Lyon County 

5 Directors/ 2 Ag 2 Directors 2 Directors 

1994 - CWSD acquired 525.17 acre-feet of water rights in Mud Lake Reservoir to 
enhance the availability of water supply to the Carson River. 

1997 – Carson River experienced a large flood.  The flood impacted every county in 

the Carson River Watershed. 

1998 – Carson River Conference attended by 120 stakeholders to address flood 
devastation caused by 1997 flood. 

1998 - The CWSD agreed to serve as the lead agency for Carson River Watershed 
planning, and management and coordinate the Carson River Coalition (CRC).   



CWSD History 

 

CRC was formed to serve as the steering committee for watershed planning efforts.  
CWSD hired its own staff. 

1999 - Churchill County became a member of the CWSD by a Nevada legislative 
amendment to NRS 541. Membership of the board expanded to eleven directors 
(Table 2).  

Table 2: 1999 Eleven Member Board Membership 

Douglas County Carson City Lyon County Churchill County 

5 Directors/ 2 Ag 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors 

1999 - CWSD was selected to administer the AB 380 Newlands Water Rights 
Purchase and Retirement Program (AB380) by The Nevada Legislature.  The goal of 
AB380 was to purchase/transfer and permanently retire 6,500 acres of water rights in 
the Newlands Project in Churchill County to provide additional flows on the Truckee 
River to Pyramid Lake.  This program continued for five years and was able to 
permanently retire approximately 4,000 acres of water rights. 

2001 - Alpine County, California  became a member of CWSD through a Joint 

Powers Agreement with CWSD pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (California 

Government Code § 6500 et seq.) and the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Nevada Revised 

Statutes § 277.080-277.180). CWSD Board of Directors was expanded to 13 directors 

representing all regions of the watershed. 

Table 3: 2001 Thirteen Member Board Membership 

Douglas County  Carson City Lyon County Churchill County Alpine County, CA 

5 Directors/ 2 Ag 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors 

 

2002 - CWSD acquired 219 acre-feet of water rights in Lost Lakes Reservoirs to 

further enhance winter flows in the Carson River. 

2003 - CWSD was appointed Clean Water Act - Section 208 Water Quality 

Management Planning Entity for the Carson River Watershed by the Governor of 

Nevada. 

2004 - CWSD hosted conference which became the foundation for development of 

a Regional Floodplain Management Program: Conserving Our Lifeline in the Desert 

Through Community Development and Floodplain Management. Over 120 people 

representing stakeholders from the entire Carson River Watershed.   

2004 - CWSD developed a Comprehensive Regional Water Management Plan for 

the Carson River Watershed focusing on describing and identifying methods for 

meeting the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) requirements for the Carson River. 



CWSD History 

 

2004 - CWSD created "Our Lifeline in the Desert" map which received several 

awards for outreach and education and developed the "Explore Your Watershed" 

Program based on the Carson River Watershed  

2004 - CWSD received the 2004 Wendell McCurry Excellence in Water Quality 

Award from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) for its leadership 

role to improve water quality, riparian habitat, and watershed health in the Carson River 

Basin. 

2005 - CWSD hosted the Carson River Symposium featuring a wide-range of 

speakers seeking to explain the function and administration of the Carson River.  

The symposium was attended by 175 representatives from a diverse mix of public and 

private agencies and organizations, education institutions, developers, and press from 

throughout the watershed. 

2005 - CWSD completed the update of the 1982 Carson Basin 208 Water Quality 

Management Plan which was submitted to NDEP. 

2005 - CWSD completed the Aquatic Life Statute Report for River Systems. 

2005 - CWSD helped fund the upsizing of the water line from Carson City toward 

Mound House, which was completed in 2005. 

2005 - CWSD enter into a Cooperative Technical Partner (CTP) Agreement with 

FEMA. 

2006 - CWSD coordinated FEMA repairs of the diversion structures damaged by the 

2006 flood in the middle and upper Carson River 

2007 - CWSD developed the Adaptive Stewardship Plan for the Carson River 

Watershed, with input from the Carson River Coalition. This plan was updated in 2017.  

2008 - CWSD developed the Carson River Watershed Regional Floodplain 

Management Plan, with input from the Carson River Coalition.  This document was 

updated in 2012 and 2018. This plan and its updates have been adopted by all 

watershed counties.  

2009 - CWSD managed the EPA grant to upgrade the Marlette Lake Pumping 

System to its completion in October 2009 and hosted an event at Marlette Lake to 

celebrate and show the system. 

2009 - CWSD conducted the first two-day "Get on the Bus" Carson River 

Watershed Tours, covering the watershed from headwaters in Alpine County, 

California to its terminus in Churchill County, Nevada. 

2009 - CWSD helped create the Watershed Learning Center at the Children's 

Museum of Northern Nevada in Carson City, in conjunction with the CRC Education 

Working Group,  



CWSD History 

 

2009 - Storey County becomes an advisory member of the CWSD.  It's 

representative on the CWSD Board is appointed by the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners.   

2010 - CWSD organized and facilitated the 2010 Annual Noxious Weed Management 

Forum. 

2010 - CWSD awarded FEMA CTP funds to facilitate the remodeling and remapping 

the Carson River floodplains upstream of Lahontan Reservoir.  CWSD has 

subsequently been awarded 12 grants from FEMA. From 2010 to 2022, CWSD has 

received over $5.6 million and has conducted over 48 flood risk studies.    

2011 - CWSD administered a 3-year,  $628,000, American Reinvestment and 

Recovery Act of 2009 (ARRA) grant for fire fuels reduction/noxious weeds abatement 

in the Carson River Watershed. 

2011 - CWSD helped fund the Douglas County Regional Pipeline. 

2012 - CWSD began conducting an annual Water Rate Study for all the water 

purveyors in the Carson River watershed. 

2013 - CWSD organized and facilitated an Environmental Education Roundtable 

discussing programmatic evaluation processes. 

2013 – CWSD provided funding to upsize the regional pipeline in Stagecoach.  

CWSD conducted "Explore Your Watershed" Conservation Tours throughout the 

watershed with a NDEP grant to address the Carson River system, history, non-point 

and point source pollution impact, prevention, and mitigation, river access, bank 

stabilization, channel migration, invasive species, and floodplain function. 

2015 – CWSD created the Watershed Literacy Action Plan, with guidance from the 

CRC.  

2016 - CWSD staff worked with our watershed partners to update the Carson River 

Watershed Adaptive Stewardship Plan. This plan meets the EPA’s nine elements for 

a Watershed Plan. 

2017 - CWSD assisted with coordination of the 4th annual Nevada Flood Awareness 

(FAW) Week. Designed and funded billboard ad space, Spanish television and radio 

ads, and web and newspaper ads for FAW and NevadaFloods.org campaign. CWSD 

continued implementation of Watershed-Literacy Implementation Phase II which 

included hosting Carson River Watershed Management forum and distributing a 

Spanish version of our physical Carson River Watershed Map. 

2018 - CWSD revised the Regional Floodplain Management Plan for the Carson 

River Watershed, which was adopted by all six watershed counties.  CWSD planned 

and organized the CRC’s 20th Anniversary held at River Fork Ranch. 



CWSD History 

 

2019 – CWSD completed Carson River Watershed Boundary Sign Project; 

completed online interactive map; implemented Healthy Watershed Campaign; and 

developed Hydrology/Geomorphology 101 course for elected officials.   

2020 – CWSD published an updated “2020 CWSD Overview” and the new “I am 

Carson River Watershed” videos; CWSD was awarded the 2020 Golden Pinecone 

Sustainability Award from GREENevada; and CWSD’s General Manager was 

recognized as the 2020 Floodplain Manager of the Year for the Floodplain 

Management Association’s CA/NV/HI region.  CWSD continued the “I AM Carson River 

Watershed” Campaign including the Walk through the Watershed videos in English & 

Spanish and the logo sticker distribution.  Both were promoted on social media and 

traditional media throughout 2020. 

2021 – Due to Covid-19 Pandemic restrictions, the Carson River Coalition's 2021 

Watershed Forum was the first virtual adaptation of the annual conference. Watershed 

Wednesdays encompassed five morning sessions over the five Wednesdays in March 

emphasizing a distinct aspect of integrated watershed management in the Carson River 

Watershed.  

2021 – CWSD launched "Water Connects Us All" Community Drinking Water PSA 

featuring local community members during Earth Week 2021. 

2021 – Storey County became a member of the CWSD by a Nevada legislative 
amendment to NRS 541. Membership of the board expanded to fifteen directors 
(Table 4).  

Table 4: 2021 Fifteen Member Board Membership 

Douglas County  Carson City Lyon County Churchill County Alpine County, CA Storey County 

5 Directors/ 2 Ag 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors 2 Directors  

 

 



            Overview of the General Fund Income 

• More than 70 % of CWSD income comes from Ad Valorem/Property tax 

• Due to the downturn in the economy in the 2009 period, the amount of 

funds CWSD received from Ad Valorem/Property tax dropped for several 

years. It was not until FY 2019-20 that the amount of funds CWSD received 

from Ad Valorem/Property tax equaled the amount CWSD received in 2009-

10. 

• Grants are CWSD second largest source of income.  Over 20 % of CWSD 

Administrative costs are covered by grants.  The rest of the grant funds go to 

reimburse consultants.  

• Excluding grant funding, water leases provide just over 3.5 % income to 

CWSD. 

• In the early 2000s, interest income provided 1 to 4 percent of CWSD income.  

Over the past 13 years the amount of funds from interest is less than 0.1 %.     

 

Overview of the General Fund Expenses 

• Administrative costs have increased by 9 % annually; however, 

Administrative Costs compared to the overall expenses has not changed. 

• Until FY 2011-12, CWSD would transfer 11 to 40 % of the annual budget from 

the General Account to either the Acqu/Const or Floodplain Management 

Accounts.  After 2011-12, the transfer amounts dropped to 0 to 5 % per fiscal 

year.  In 2020, the CWSD Board directed that at least $75,000 each year 

should be transferred into the Acquisition/Construction Fund.  

• In FY 2010-11, CWSD entered into a twenty-year agreement with Douglas 

County and Carson City to provide each entity with $125,000 each year for 

the regional pipeline from Douglas County into Carson City.    

• Over the past ten years CWSD has provided USGS between $100,000 to 

$195,000 for on-going groundwater monitoring, stream flow gauges, and 

water quality studies. 

• Over the past ten years the amount of funds CWSD has provided to projects 

has increased as the Ad Valorem income has increased.   

 



 

 

 

 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

General Fund Income

Ad Valorem Tax Interest Water Lease Misc. Grants

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

General Fund Expenses

Administrative (1) Projects Grants USGS Studies Pipeline Transfers



Past General Board Direction 

Board Meetings – 

1. Move Board Meetings in the Summer to each County 

2. Hold a Field Trip Before Each Board Meeting – Focusing on something the county wants to show 

to the rest of the Board 

3. Streamline Board Letter’s and Board Package 

4. Maximize the Consent Agenda  

5. Goal to reach consensus on all activities 

Leadership –  

1. Be a leader in the watershed regarding water supply and water quality.   

2. Be a leader in outreach to the community regarding agriculture, floodplain protection, reduce 

flood risk, regional water supply, watershed awareness, environment, and promote data 

collection.  

3. Be a leader in the state and country 

4. Be a source of information to the counties, cities, and the various water purveyors regarding the 

Carson River Watershed.  

Funding Priorities with Ad Valorem Taxes – (Match is not necessary but recommended) 

1. Work along the Carson River (Bank Erosion/Stabilization) 

2. Work in the Carson River Watershed (Weed Control, Strom Water Basins) 

3. Water Supply Evaluation (Surface, Groundwater, & Reclaimed Water) 

4. Water Quality (USGS Data Gathering) 

5. Facilitate the Carson River Coalition (CRC) process 

6. Education & Outreach 

Accounting –  

1. Goal to keep Administrative Costs under 35% total budget 

Water Law –  

1. Support the Alpine Decree and Nevada Water Law 

2. Any proposed project or study must be in-line with Nevada Water Law and the Alpine Decree 

 

 



Carson River Coalition Guiding Principles 

  

1. Manage the water’s resources for economic sustainability, quality of life, and 

protection of private and public property rights.  

2.  Acknowledge and respect the watershed’s natural processes in land use 

decisions.  

3. Maintain or improve the quality of the water to support a variety of beneficial 

uses.  

4. Protect the headwaters region as the system’s principal water source. 

 5. Recognize and respect the interests of all stakeholders upstream and 

downstream by fostering collaborative and mutual respectful relationships.  

6. Maintain the riverine and alluvial fan floodplains of the Carson River Watershed 

to accommodate flood events.  

7. Protect and manage uplands, mountain ranges, wetlands, and riparian areas to 

enhance the quality of surface flow, groundwater recharge, and wildlife habitat.  

8. Promote conservation of water from all sectors of the community’s water users 

for the benefit of municipal, industrial, agricultural, domestic, recreational, and 

natural resources.  

9. Encourage management of growth that considers water quality and quantity, 

open space preservation, and maintenance of agriculture in floodplains.  

10.Protect and support opportunities for public recreational access to natural 

areas throughout the watershed – including the river corridor – where 

appropriate.  

11.Promote understanding and awareness of watershed resources and issues 

through cooperative education efforts throughout the watershed.  

 



Discussion Regarding Mud Lake and Lost Lakes Water Rights 

 

In 1994, CWSD purchased 528 AF of the Mud Lake water rights.  The purpose of the purchase was to 

enhance water supply for both municipal and agricultural uses. CWSD was in negotiations to purchase 

all of Mud Lake’s water rights, land, and dam when Don Bently came in and purchased the remaining 

water rights, land, and dam.  Periodically, representatives for Mr. Bently would contact CWSD to see if 

we were interested in selling the Mud Lake water rights.  The answer was always no.  CWSD currently 

leases the Mud Lake water right to Carson City.  This water is used by Carson City during the non-

irrigation periods and is pumped through their induction wells.      

Side note -  Historically,  Bently’s field people would divert water out of the West Fork during the non-

irrigation period.  CWSD would hire a person to release the water out of Mud Lake during the same 

period.  The distance between where the water was being diverted out of the river and reentering the 

river is about 7 miles.  Carson City would pump this water through their induction wells.  CWSD would 

pay Bently our prorated share of the costs for maintaining the ditch and dam.  In the mid-2000s, CWSD 

was approached by citizens concerned that during the fall, the West Fork below the Snowshoe 

Thompson diversion would go dry, due to the water being diverted into Mud Lake.  This was having an 

adverse impact on the fishery.  Through negotiations with the Department of Water Resources and the 

Federal Watermaster, CWSD was able to enter an agreement that we could take our water right in the 

river at the diversion structure. By doing this, CWSD is able to maintain an instream flow of at least five 

CFS in the river.  

In the late 1990s, CWSD had the opportunity to purchase the Red Lake water rights.  CWSD decided not 

to purchase the water right.  The water right was sold to Cal Fish and Game for a fishery.  The problem is 

that Cal Fish and Game does not have the funding, labor, or the mandate to utilize the water for 

multiple purposes.  The water is not being used by downstream users and the health of the reservoir has 

deteriorated. Over the last several years, Red Lake has had some major algae bloom impacts.   Based on 

this experience CWSD wanted to ensure that the limited water storage in the upper watershed could 

benefit the entire watershed.   

In 2000, CWSD was approached by the Lost Lakes water right owners for possible purchase of the water 

right.  CWSD agreed to purchase the water rights.  CWSD goals at the time of the purchase was to keep 

the water in Lost Lake during the summertime for recreation purposes, release the water in the fall to 

supplement the West Fork stream flow, and to sell the water to a downstream user.  Periodically, 

Carson City would purchase some of the Lost Lake water.  This has only happened a few years.   

When CWSD purchased the water rights the California dam fees that year were under $1,200.  The next 

year California modified their dam fee structure.  CWSD dam fees increased to over $3,200.  The annual 

dam fee increased to over $10,200.  Last year CWSD paid over $7,500 in dam fees.  Besides the dam 

fees, CWSD must pay California permit fees of over $600 per year.  CWSD also paid an annual US Forest 

Service a permit fee around $165.  In 2020, the USFS told CWSD that they were restructuring their 

permit fees.  CWSD fees would go from $165 per year to over $6,000 per year.  After several discussions 

with the USFS, we found out the USFS fees could be waived since we are a governmental agency and if 

we did not receive funding from the sale of the water rights.   Based on this, CWSD now enters into an 



annual agreement with Carson City to provide the water at no cost to Carson City.  Over the past 20 

years Lost Lakes has cost CWSD $187,000 and this does not include staff time.   

For the past few years, CWSD has been trying to figure out how to utilize the Lost Lake water rights.  

Some ideas have been: 

• Sell the water right (possibly Cal Fish and Game) 

• Exchange the water right for water in Red Lakes  

• Transfer the water rights downstream to a new point of diversion 

• Keep the water rights in Lost Lakes 

CWSD needs to decide how we want to utilize the Lost Lake water rights in the future.  

  

    



STAFF REPORTS 



 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM:  EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE:  April 20, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #12 - For Information Only:  Staff Report  

 
DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities (mostly virtual) attended by  
Ed James and staff since the last Board meeting on March 16, 2022: 
 
3/17/22 – Debbie participated in ASFPM Arid Regions monthly conference call 

3/18/22 – Ed attended Groundwater Pumping Date Zoom meeting 

3/23/22 – Staff Meeting (all) 

3/24/22 – Ed, Shane & Catrina hosted Carson River Permit Workshop with USACE 

3/24/22 – Debbie attended FAW Week meeting 

3/24/22 – Debbie attended FEMA CERC Webinar “Practical Skills for Customer-Centric 
Engagement” 

3/24/22 – Ed attended Douglas County Data Chat Zoom meeting 

3/24/22 – Brenda, Shane & Martina attended Watershed Moments Zoom meeting with 
Neon 

3/25/22 – Ed and Debbie attended Buckeye Creek Design Kickoff mtg with JE Fuller team 

3/25/22 – Brenda, Shane & Martina attended Zoom meeting re: GIS Web Viewer SOQ 

3/29/22- 3/30/22:  All staff hosted CRC Watershed Forum, Ruvo Stateroom, Governor’s 
Mansion 

3/31/22 – Ed attended Zoom mtg with Conservation Districts and NDEP re:  401 Permits 

4/1/22 –   Ed attended Nevada Floodplain Managers CRS Working Group meeting hosted 
by NDWR 

4/4/22 –  Ed attended Carson City Insurance Renewal Committee meeting 

4/5/22 –  Brenda, Shane & Martina met w/Neon to edit Foster Healthy Soils Watershed 
Moments Video 

4/5/22 –  Catrina attended Special Districts Roundtable hosted by POOL/PACT 

4/5/22 –  Ed attended the CVCD Board meeting 

4/5/22 –  Brenda attended NDEP State BMP Scoping meeting re:  Revision of the State 
BMP Handbook 

4/6/22 –  Holly attended FEMA ND Grants Recipient Training 



2 
4/20/2022 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #12 - Staff Report 

 

 

4/7/22 –  Brenda & Martina met w/Neon to discuss social media posts for next Watershed 
Moments launch 

4/11/22 – Foster Healthy Soils Watershed Moments launch 

4/11/22 – Ed hosted Southeast Carson City ADMP Kickoff meeting 

4/12/22 – Ed, Debbie, Holly and Catrina attended the Kickoff meeting for the 30-Year 
Regional Water Planning  

4/13/22 – Ed discussed CWSD’s watershed approach to the AmeriCorps in Reno 

4/13/22-   Holly begins 6-week Emergency Management Institute’s Grant Management 
Training 

4/14/22 – Debbie and Ed hosted the kickoff meeting for the Virginia/Six Mile Canyon 
ADMP study  

4/19/22 - Debbie and Ed attended FEMA CTP COP Bi-annual General meeting 

4/20/22 – Debbie reviewed earned values of FEMA projects with Region 9 representative 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 



NO CORRESPONDENCE


	4-20-22 #1 Agenda
	#6 insert (last minutes)
	4-20-22 #6 3-16-2022 Bd Mtg Minutes (DRAFT) (002)
	#7 insert (TreasRpt)
	4-20-22 #7 Treasurers Report
	#8 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	4-20-22 #8 Bills Paid
	#9 insert
	4-20-22 #9 Civil Rights Contract Language
	#10 insert
	Page 1

	4-20-22 #10 CRC Watershed Forum
	#11 insert
	Page 1
	Untitled

	4-20-22 #11A CWSD History by year (002)
	4-20-22 #11B Over view of income and expenses
	4-20-22 #11C Income and Expenses graphs (002)
	4-20-22 #11D Past Board Direction (002)
	4-20-22 #11E Guiding Principles
	4-20-22 #11F Discussion Regarding Mud Lake and Lost Lakes Water Rights
	Staff reports
	4-20-22 #12 STAFF REPORT
	No Correspondence insert
	Page 1


